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Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: [External] Re: Webex webinar invitation: May Rules Review Commission Special 
Meeting

 

From: Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov>  
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 11:54 AM 
To: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Lucasse, Mary L <mlucasse@ncdoj.gov> 
Subject: RE: [External] Re: Webex webinar invitation: May Rules Review Commission Special Meeting 
 
Mary, 
 
Thank you for joining us this morning via WebEx, and for letting us know that you did not have a statement but were 
available to answer questions from the Commissioners.  I would note that no Commissioner had a question for 
you during the proceedings on the second motion. 
 
As Chair Doran states at the outset of all of our meetings, anyone who has trouble speaking when addressed 
should email the staff attorney handling their rules.  Had you reached out to me, I would have alerted the Chair and 
we certainly would have paused the proceedings to allow you time to sort out whatever technical issues arose. 
 
Thank you, 
Brian 
 
Brian Liebman 
Counsel to the North Carolina Rules Review Commission 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
(984)236-1948 
brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov 
 
E-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law 
N.C.G.S. Chapter 132 and may be disclosed to third parties. 
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Burgos, Alexander N

From: Burgos, Alexander N
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 10:38 AM
To: 'Lucasse, Mary'
Cc: Liebman, Brian R
Subject: RE: [External] Re: Webex webinar invitation: May Rules Review Commission Special 

Meeting

My apologies, I tried finding you in the chat but couldn’t locate you. We will let her know. 
 
Alexander Burgos 
Paralegal 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
1711 New Hope Church Road 
Raleigh NC, 27609 
(984) 236-1940 
Alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov 
 

From: Lucasse, Mary <MLucasse@ncdoj.gov>  
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 10:20 AM 
To: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: [External] Re: Webex webinar invitation: May Rules Review Commission Special Meeting 
 
CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless verified. Report suspicious emails with the Report Message 
button located on your Outlook menu bar on the Home tab. 

 
Alex,  
There is nothing more frustrating then to have my microphone locked when the chair was inviting me to 
speak the second time today. Please inform the chair that I was present. Thank you. Mary  
 
Get Outlook for Android 

From: Burgos, Alexander N <messenger@webex.com> on behalf of Burgos, Alexander N 
<alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 1:50:06 PM 
To: Lucasse, Mary <MLucasse@ncdoj.gov> 
Subject: Webex webinar invitation: May Rules Review Commission Special Meeting 
When: Monday, May 13, 2024 3:00 PM-5:00 PM. 
Where: https://ncgov.webex.com/ncgov/j.php?MTID=m81df8b9f5b9cb1b9cf3f4b021a6d0449  
  

  

  

 



2

  

 

Burgos, Alexander N is inviting you to a scheduled Webex 
webinar.  

  

Monday, May 13, 2024  

10:00 AM  |  (UTC-04:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)  |  2 hrs  

  

 

Add to calendar Google · O365

  
 

Join webinar  

 

  

More ways to join:

  

Join from the webinar link 

https://ncgov.webex.com/ncgov/j.php?MTID=m81df8b9f5b9cb1b9cf3f4b021a6d

0449 

  

Join by the webinar number 

Webinar number (access code): 2428 694 0862 

Webinar password: 1234 (1234 from phones and video systems) 

  

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only) 

+1-415-655-0003,,24286940862#1234# US Toll 

+1-904-900-2303,,24286940862#1234# United States Toll (Jacksonville)

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password. 

  

Join by phone 

+1-415-655-0003 US Toll 

+1-904-900-2303 United States Toll (Jacksonville)

Global call-in numbers 

 

  

Need help? Go to https://help.webex.com  
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Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: [External] RE: [RRC.InterestedPersons] Notice of Rules Review Commission
Special Meeting - May 13, 2024

 

From: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov>  
Sent: Sunday, May 12, 2024 6:40 PM 
To: Lucasse, Mary L <mlucasse@ncdoj.gov>; Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: [External] RE: [RRC.InterestedPersons] Notice of Rules Review Commission Special Meeting - May 13, 2024 
 
Thanks Mary.  I plan to be there in person. 
 
 
Jennifer EvereƩ 
DEQ Rulemaking Coordinator  
N.C. Depart. Of Environmental Quality 
Office of General Counsel 
1601 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1601 
Tele: (919)-707-8595 
hƩps://deq.nc.gov/permits-rules/rules-regulaƟons/deq-proposed-rules 
 
  
 
E-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to 
third parƟes. 
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
Sent: Saturday, May 11, 2024 4:03 AM 
To: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov> 
Subject: [External] RE: [RRC.InterestedPersons] Notice of Rules Review Commission Special Meeting - May 13, 2024 
 
CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless verified. Report suspicious emails with the Report Message 
button located on your Outlook menu bar on the Home tab. 

 
Alex,  
  I will be available online if the RRC has any questions.  Thanks, Mary 
 

From: rrc.interestedpersons-bounces@lists.ncmail.net <rrc.interestedpersons-bounces@lists.ncmail.net> On Behalf Of 
Burgos, Alexander N 
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 5:00 PM 
To: OAH.rulers <rulers@lists.ncmail.net>; OAH.rrc.interestedpersons <rrc.interestedpersons@lists.ncmail.net> 
Subject: [RRC.InterestedPersons] Notice of Rules Review Commission Special Meeting - May 13, 2024 
Importance: High 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
The Commission scheduled a special meeting on Monday, May 13, 2024, at 10:00 a.m.   
 
The meeting will be conducted via Webex and in person in the Commission’s regular meeting room at the Office of 
Administrative Hearings, 1711 New Hope Church Road, Raleigh, NC.  The Commission will consider the temporary rules 
and agency response to the RRC on May 13th posted on the Special Meeting Agenda. 
 
Here is the agenda: 
 
https://www.oah.nc.gov/news/events/rrc-special-meeting-may-2024 
 
 
Alexander Burgos 
Paralegal 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
1711 New Hope Church Road 
Raleigh NC, 27609 
(984) 236-1940 
Alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov 
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Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized 
state official. 



1

Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: May 2024 Special Meeting Staff Opinion

 

From: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 2:19 PM 
To: Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Lucasse, Mary L <mlucasse@ncdoj.gov> 
Subject: RE: May 2024 Special Meeting Staff Opinion 
 
Thanks Brian. 
 
 
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

From: Liebman, Brian R
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 11:47 AM
To: Everett, Jennifer
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N; Lucasse, Mary L
Subject: May 2024 Special Meeting Staff Opinion
Attachments: 05.2024 - CRC Return Temp Rule Staff Opinion.pdf

Good morning, 
 
Attached, please find a courtesy copy of a staƯ opinion recommending return of all temporary rules other than 
Rules 07H .0507 and .0508. 
 
As always, if you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask. 
 
Best, 
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

Subject: FW: RRC Objection Letter

 

From: Liebman, Brian R  
Sent: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 5:03 PM 
To: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov>; Rules, Oah <oah.rules@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Lucasse, Mary L; Cahoon, Renee M 
<Renee.Cahoon@deq.nc.gov>; Lopazanski, Mike <mike.lopazanski@deq.nc.gov>; Miller, Tancred 
<tancred.miller@deq.nc.gov>; Willis, Angela <angela.willis@deq.nc.gov>; Govoni, Daniel <daniel.govoni@deq.nc.gov>; 
Goebel, Christine A <Christine.Goebel@deq.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: RRC Objection Letter 
 
Jennifer, 
 
Thank you for your letter.  I do have a question regarding scope.  The letter I have addresses only Rules 07H .0507 
and .0508.  Will there be any further filings from the CRC relevant to the other Rules that the RRC objected to, or is 
this the extent of the CRC’s filing? 
 
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
Attachments: 2024-05-07 Ltr to RRC providing supplment FoN & attachments.pdf

 

From: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 7, 2024 4:10 PM 
To: Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov>; Rules, Oah <oah.rules@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Lucasse, Mary L <mlucasse@ncdoj.gov>; Cahoon, Renee M 
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
 
Hello, 
 
Please find attached CRC’s supplemental findings of need regarding 15A NCAC 07H .0507 and .0508.   
Let us know if you have any questions.   

Best,  
 
Jennifer 
 
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
 



 

 
JOSH STEIN 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

 
 

        
REPLY TO: 

MARY L. LUCASSE 
(919) 716-6962 

MLUCASSE@NCDOJ.GOV 

May 7, 2024 

Via Email only: oah.rules@oah.nc.gov 

North Carolina Rules Review Commission 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
1711 New Hope Church Road 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27609 

Re:  Supplemental to Statements of Need for  
15A N.C. Admin. Code 07H .0507 and .0508, 

Dear Chair Doran and Commission Members:  

 On behalf of the North Carolina Coastal Resources Commission (“CRC) and in 
accordance with the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. 150B-21.1(b1), please accept this letter as 
the CRC’s supplement to the Temporary Rulemaking Findings of Need provided to the 
North Carolina Rules Review Commission (“RRC”) in support of temporary rules 15A N.C. 
Admin. Code 07H .0507 and .0508 adopted by the CRC on March 13, 2024. For your 
convenience, attached are the original Temporary Rulemaking Findings of Need which this 
letter supplements.  

Supplemental Background Information in Support CRC’s Findings of Need. 

In 1987, the CRC received a nomination from the North Carolina Department of 
Natural Resources and Community Development, Division of Parks and Recreation 
requesting Jockey's Ridge in Dare County be considered for possible designation as an Area 
of Environmental Concern (“AEC”). (May 7, 1987 Nomination, June 4, 1987 Preliminary 
Evaluation, and December 3, 1987 Memo to the CRC). The nomination explained:  

Jockey's Ridge, as the tallest active dune along the Atlantic 
Coast, and represents the southern extremity of a back barrier 
dune system which extends north along Currituck Spit to the 
vicinity of False Cape State Park in Virginia. Jockey's Ridge is 
an excellent example of a medano (a large isolated hill of sand, 
asymmetrical in profile and lacking vegetation). Jockey's Ridge 
is unique in that it is the largest medano in North Carolina, 
and one in which the majority of the surface area is protected 
by State ownership. This feature may also be classified as a 
transverse dune (a dune forming a wavelike ridge transverse to 
the prevailing wind direction). The geological significance of 
Jockey's Ridge was acknowledged in 1974 when the U. S. 
Department of the Interior included Jockey's Ridge in the 
National Registry of Natural Landmarks. 

(May 7, 1987 Nomination, p 2)   
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In 1987, commercial  “mining” of sand from the system severely threatened the 
integrity of Jockey's Ridge. Specifically, sand was being removed from the dune system 
“[d]uring summer months [when] the southwesterly winds blow tons of sand from Jockey's 
Ridge onto adjacent privately owned lots. Sand blown on two of these lots is scooped up and 
trucked away.” (June 4, 1987 Preliminary Evaluation, p 2 (emphasis added)) Without the 
protection of the CRC’s rules designating the AEC and setting use standards for the AEC, 
the integrity of Jockey’s Ridge is again threatened.  

In 1987, the CRC agreed that Jockey’s Ridge met the requirements for designation 
as a “Unique Geological Formation AEC” pursuant to the authority provided by G.S. 113A-
113(b)(4)(g). Accordingly, the CRC adopted and maintained rules designating the Jockey’s 
Ridge AEC and establishing minimum use standards to protect this unique natural 
resource in North Carolina. 15A NCAC 07H .0507 and .0508.  

As part of the CRC’s recent effort to re-establish the Jockey’s Ridge AEC through 
new permanent rulemaking, the State Geologist, Dr. Kenneth Taylor, confirmed in an April 
24, 2024 letter, a copy of which is attached, that Jockey’s Ridge is unique geological 
formation – It is “not only the largest medano in North Carolina but is the largest 
anywhere along the Atlantic and Gulf Coasts, and one in which the majority of the surface 
area has been protected by the State through its dedication as a State Park.” Dr. Taylor 
explained, “it is important to prevent incompatible development through the commercial 
removal of sand from this fragile system as such removal would severely threaten the 
integrity of Jockey' s Ridge. With no new sand sources to help replenish the system, it is 
imperative to protect what exists instead of allowing major irreversible damage to occur.” 
See April 24, 2024 Letter to CRC from Dr. Kenneth Taylor (emphasis added).  

For over 35 years, Jockey' s Ridge AEC has been protected by these rules which 
establish the AEC boundaries and set development standards designed to minimize 
removal of sand from the system when the natural processes that move and shape the 
Jockey' s Ridge sand dune move sand outside the park boundary. These two rules provide 
the necessary authority to allow the Division of Coastal Management to protect the public 
safety and welfare through the use standards that keep the sand in the dune system when 
it naturally moves outside the park boundary. 

In its April 8, 2024 letter, the RRC adopted and incorporated the opinion of its 
counsel. In summary, RRC counsel’s analysis covered three issues. The CRC addresses each 
as follows:  

1. The CRC’s Findings of Need and Supplemental Findings Demonstrate 
that Adherence to the Notice and Hearing Requirement of Permanent 
Rulemaking is Contrary to Public Interest.  

In their opinion, RRC’s counsel asserts that the CRC failed to meet the first prong 
required by G.S. 150B-21.1(a) (2023) (“that adherence to the notice and hearing 
requirements of G.S. 150B‑21.2 would be contrary to the public interest”). Specifically, 
based on comments submitted by Cedar Point Developers, LLC and the North Carolina 
Homebuilders Association, the RRC dismissed the CRC’s claim that once the rules were 
removed from the Code, the State cannot rely on these rules for permitting and 
enforcement decisions, and as a direct result the NC Coastal Management Program has lost 
“the ability to protect coastal lands and waters.”   
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The comments submitted are not applicable to the Findings of Need for 07H .0507 
and .0508 as they refer to the number of permits issued pursuant to rules that are in the 
Code and do not address the fact that with the removal of these two rules from the Code, 
the CRC no longer has jurisdiction to protect Jockey’s Ridge. The number of permits issued 
does not address the public’s interest in protecting Jockey’s Ridge. This protection was 
removed when the two Jockey’s Ridge AEC rules were removed from the Code. It is 
contrary to the public interest to delay approving rules that provide protections against 
commercial mining of sand from Jockey’s Ridge.  

In addition, RRC’s counsel asserts that the number of comments received indicates 
that the notice and hearing requirements of permanent rulemaking should be adhered to. 
This argument fails to consider that by RRC counsel’s own admission, the CRC has already 
provided more than the minimum time for comments required by permanent rulemaking by 
extending the public comment period for the temporary rulemaking to 64 days (which is in 
excess of the minimum 60 days required for permanent rulemaking). 

It is contrary to the overwhelming public interest to withhold protection for this 
unique natural resource to require a further period for notice and hearing. The approval of 
the CRC’s temporary rules designating the Jockey’s Ridge AEC and associated use 
standards would have little or no effect on those who do not intend to export sand from 
Jockey’s Ridge. As is clear from the overwhelming outcry following the removal of these 
rules from the Code including the hundreds of comments largely in support of a Jockey’s 
Ridge AEC directed to both the CRC and RRC, these rules have the full support of 
stakeholders, including the NC state parks and the public. It is likely that if the RRC 
requires the CRC to restart the process to adhere to the notice and hearing requirements of 
permanent rulemaking, the result will simply be a greater outcry in support of these rules.  

Based on this supplemental information and the Findings of Need, the CRC 
respectfully requests that the RRC consider these additional findings and determine that 
the CRC has met the first prong required by G.S. 150B-21.1(a).  

2. CRC’s Supplemental Information and Findings of Need Demonstrate 
that Immediate Adoption of these Rules is Required Because of a 
Serious and Unforeseen Threat to Public Safety and Welfare. 

In their written opinion, RRC’s counsel asserts that the CRC failed to meet the 
second prong required by G.S. 150B-21.1(a) (2023) (“that the immediate adoption of the rule 
is required by one or more of a statutorily enumerated list of circumstances or events”). In 
support, the RRC asserts the session law which changed the process by which rules are 
removed from the Code cannot constitute an unforeseen threat to the public’s health, 
safety, or welfare allowing an agency to avoid the requirements of permanent rulemaking 
under the APA because the legislature is presumed to know the law. The CRC disagrees 
with this analysis since the issue is not whether the change in law was unforeseen by 
legislature but by the rulemaking agency.  

  Here the legislature’s change to the existing statute was unforeseen by the CRC who 
is not privy to the behind-the-scenes budget process undertaken by the legislature. What 
matters is not whether the change was unforeseen by the legislature, but whether it was 
unforeseen by the CRC, the agency charged with protecting Jockey’s Ridge through the 
AEC designation and rules. Not only was the APA change unforeseen to the CRC, but the 
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change in statute resulted in the “immediate” removal of the rules. Unlike the deliberate  
and extensive notice and hearing process required for the development and implementation 
of both temporary and permanent rules, the statutory change to the process that 
immediately removed the two rules protecting Jockey’s Ridge happened without any 
hearings or notice to the CRC or to the public and other stakeholders for Jockey’s Ridge 
that removal of the rules was imminent.  

When 07H .0507 and .0508 were removed from the Code, there resulted a serious 
and unforeseen threat to the Coastal Management Program and specifically the Jockey’s 
Ridge AEC. In this case, the serious and unforeseen threat was to a unique environmental 
resource. This serious and unforeseen threat directly impacts public safety and the welfare 
of North Carolina citizens, stakeholders, and the public trust rights to use this unique 
natural resource and was directly caused by the removal of the CRC’s jurisdiction over 
Jockey’s Ridge. When the CRC lost jurisdiction over Jockey’s Ridge, it lost the ability to 
prevent commercial mining of the sand which prior to the adoption of the CRC’s rules had 
been an ongoing threat to this dune system.  

The loss of the rules caused an unforeseen threat to the environment. Without these 
rules, there are no protections against commercial mining of sand from Jockey’s Ridge. In 
Dr. Taylor’s letter to the CRC, he explains that because “there are no new sand sources to 
help replenish the system,” “it is important to prevent incompatible development through 
the commercial removal of sand from this fragile system as such removal would severely 
threaten the integrity of Jockey' s Ridge.” See April 24, 2024 letter emphasis added.  He 
continues, “it is imperative to protect what exists instead of allowing major irreversible 
damage to occur.” Id. 

For the reasons both in the original Findings of Need and based on this 
supplemental information, the CRC respectfully requests that the RRC find that the 
immediate adoption of these two rules is “required by” a serious and unforeseen threat to 
the public safety and welfare. 

3. Temporary Rules 07H .0507 and .0508 are consistent with the 
requirements of N.C. Gen. Stat. 150B-21.9.  

The third issue raised by the RRC’s counsel and adopted by the RRC is that the 
temporary rules do not meet the requirements established in G.S. 150B-21.9. The main 
focus of this objection appears to be the asserted “ambiguity” of the rules which refer to 
“unique geological formations.” The RRC adopts the position that words like “unique”, 
“more than local significance,” “key”, “important”, “valuable”, and “scenic” are too  
uncertain. Taking the RRC’s position to the extreme, each word in a rule, with special 
attention to adjectives, would be required to include a definition. This position ignores the 
use by the legislature of such terms in the CAMA. Moreover, courts routinely discern the 
plain meaning of these words described in a dictionary.  

By statute, the legislature has provided that the CRC may designate an AEC that 
contains “unique geological formations, as identified by the State Geologist.” 113A-
113(b)(4)(g). Dr. Taylor, the current State Geologist, has identified and reconfirmed 
Jockey’s Ridge as a unique geological formation. See April 24, 2024 letter to CRC from Dr. 
Taylor. This identification and reconfirmation removes any necessity for the RRC or the 
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CRC to speculate regarding definitions here. This opinion removes any of the alleged 
“ambiguity” in the rule language.  

Furthermore, for the reasons already addressed by the CRC in its November 23, 
2022 letter to the RRC regarding these rules, the legislature provided the CRC with 
statutory authority to adopt guidelines for the coastal area including “statements of 
objectives, policies, and standards to be followed in public and private use of land . . . 
consistent with the goals” in CAMA. G.S. 113A-107. In addition, these temporary rules are 
statements of general applicability that are reasonably necessary to implement or interpret 
an enactment of the General Assembly.   

* * * * * * 

In conclusion and based on the supplementation provided in this letter, as well as 
the information previously submitted to the RRC, the CRC respectfully requests that the 
RRC  find that as to 15A NCAC 07H .0507 and .0508, the CRC has met the criteria listed in 
G.S. 150B-21.1(a) and the standards in G.S. 150B-21.9.   

     Sincerely, 

      

     Mary L. Lucasse 
     Special Deputy Attorney General  
     Counsel to the CRC 

Attachments:  

1. Temporary Rulemaking Finding of Need for 07H .0507 
2. Temporary Rulemaking Finding of Need for 07H .0508 
3. May 7, 1987 Nomination 
4. June 4, 1987 Preliminary Evaluation 
5. December 3, 1987 Memo to the CRC 
6. April 24, 2024 letter to CRC from Dr. Kenneth Taylor 

 

cc: M. Renee Cahoon, CRC  Chair, electronically 
 Tancred Miller, DCM Director, electronically 
 Mike Lopazanski, DCM Deputy Director, electronically  
 Angela Willis, CRC Rulemaking Coordinator, electronically 
 Jennifer Everett, DEQ Rulemaking Coordinator, electronically 
 Brian Liebman, RRC Counsel, electronically 
 William Peaslee, RRC Counsel, electronically 
 Alex Burgos, Paralegal, Office of Administrative Hearings, electronically 



Temporary Rule 0500 – 02/2024 

 
 
 

1.  Rule-Making Agency: Coastal Resources Commission 

2.  Rule citation & name:  15A NCAC 07H .0507 Unique Coastal Geologic Formations 
 
3.  Action:                Adoption                       Amendment                          Repeal 

4.  Was this an Emergency Rule:    Yes            Effective date: January 3, 2024 
                                                    No 

5.  Provide dates for the following actions as applicable: 

   a.  Proposed Temporary Rule submitted to OAH:  December 14, 2023 

   b.  Proposed Temporary Rule published on the OAH website:  December 20, 2023 

   c.  Public Hearing date:  January 9 and 10, 2024 

   d.  Comment Period:  January 3, 2024 through February 22, 2024 

   e.  Notice pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.1(a3)(2):  December 19, 2023 

   f.  Adoption by agency on:  March 13, 2024 

   g.  Proposed effective date of temporary rule if other than effective date established by G.S. 150B- 21.1(b) 
        and G.S. 150B-21.3:   

6.  Reason for Temporary Action.  Attach a copy of any cited law, regulation, or document necessary for the review. 
 

   A serious and unforeseen threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 
   The effective date of a recent act of the General Assembly or of the U.S. Congress. 

        Cite:  S.L. 2023-134 s 21.2(m) 
        Effective date:  October 3, 2023 

   A recent change in federal or state budgetary policy. 
        Effective date of change:        

   A recent federal regulation. 
        Cite:        
        Effective date:        

   A recent court order. 
        Cite order:        

  Other:        
 

Explain: Pursuant to NC Session Law 2023-134, the Rules Review Commission returned rules to the CRC on October 5, 2023 and 
the Codifier removed those rules from the Code the same day. Until the effective date of this session law, only an agency could 
request the return of its rules. As a result, the State of North Carolina cannot not rely on the rules removed from the Code for 
permitting and enforcement decisions. In addition, the State of North Carolina can no longer review certain federal projects for 
consistency with State law based on these rules. The removal of the rules from the Code severely impacts the CRC’s rules and 
creates confusion related to permitting procedures for the State’s coastal management program and the regulated public. The 
removal of the rules causes a serious threat to public safety and welfare because without this rule, the NC Coastal Management 
Program has lost the ability to protect coastal lands and waters, which the General Assembly has deemed "among North Carolina's 
most valuable resources."  N.C. Gen. Stat. 113A-102(a). In particular, this rule provides protection for unique coastal geologic 
formations. In this rule, the CRC designated the Jockey’s Ridge Area of Environmental Concern. Without this rule, neither the CRC 
or DCM has jurisdiction to issue permits under the minimum use standards or take enforcement actions to protect this unique 
example of a medano, a large, isolated hill of sand, which has been designated a National Natural Landmark by the U.S. 
Department of the Interior. 
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7. Why is adherence to notice and hearing requirements contrary to the public interest and the immediate adoption of the 
rule is required? 
The CRC incorporates the explanation provided in response in Block 6 of this form. In addition, the CRC contends that immediate 
adoption of the rule is required instead of a more extended notice and hearing requirements. The CRC has received numerous public 
comments with the significant majority in favor of adopting the temporary rules. Specifically, the CRC has held three public 
hearings and extended the public comment period to February 22, 2024 in order to widely solicit comments not only from the 
general public and the regulated public but also through a direct appeal to the Coastal Resources Advisory Council. The CRC has 
received comments from a diverse group of commenters including, among others coastal towns and counties, civic groups, 
environmental groups, businesses, visitors’ bureaus, a group of high school students, and numerous private citizens. During the 
public comment period, the CRC received 239 comments including 1 petition with 651 signatures in support of adopting the rules. 
Of the comments received 3 were neutral, 6 included concerns, 2 provided recommendations for changes which the CRC has 
decided to consider during permanent rulemaking, and the remaining 228 comments were in support of adopting the rules. 
Immediate adoption of this rule is required to designate Jockeys’ Ridge as an Area of Environmental Concern within the CRC’s 
jurisdiction and protect this important natural resource.   
 

 
 

 
8.  Rule establishes or increases a fee? (See G.S. 12-3.1) 
 

  Yes 
        Agency submitted request for consultation on:       
        Consultation not required.  Cite authority:       
 

  No 

9. Rule-making Coordinator: Jennifer Everett 
 
Phone: 919-707-8595 
 
E-Mail: Jennifer.Everett@deq.nc.gov 
 

10. Signature of Agency Head*: 

 
 
* If this function has been delegated (reassigned) pursuant 
to G.S. 143B-10(a), submit a copy of the delegation with    this 
form. 

Agency contact, if any: Mike Lopazanski 
 
Phone: 252-515-5400 
 
E-Mail: Mike.Lopazanski@deq.nc.gov 

Typed Name: Renee Cahoon 
 
Title: CRC Chair 
 
E-Mail: Renee.Cahoon@deq.nc.gov 
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15A NCAC 07H .0507 is adopted under temporary procedures as follows: 1 

 2 

15A NCAC 07H .0507 UNIQUE COASTAL GEOLOGIC FORMATIONS 3 

(a)  Description.  Unique coastal geologic formations are defined as sites that contain geologic formations that are 4 

unique or significant components of coastal systems, or that are notable examples of geologic formations or processes 5 

in the coastal area. Such areas shall be evaluated by the Commission after identification by the State Geologist pursuant 6 

to G.S. 113A-113. 7 

(b)  Significance.  Unique coastal geologic areas are important educational, scientific, or scenic resources that would 8 

be jeopardized by uncontrolled or incompatible development. 9 

(c)  Management Objectives.  The CRC's objective is to preserve unique resources of more than local significance that 10 

function as key physical components of natural systems, as important scientific and educational sites, or as valuable 11 

scenic resources.  Specific objectives for each of these functions shall be related to the following:  12 

(1) To ensure that the designated geologic feature shall be able to interact with other components of the 13 

identified systems.  These interactions are often the natural forces acting to maintain the unique 14 

qualities of the site.  The primary concern is the relationship between the geologic feature and the 15 

accompanying biological component associated with the feature.  Other interactions which may be 16 

of equal concern are those relating the geologic feature to other physical components, specifically 17 

the relationship of the geologic feature to the hydrologic elements; ground water and surface runoff. 18 

(2) To ensure that the designated geologic feature or process shall be preserved for and be accessible to 19 

the scientific and educational communities for study purposes. 20 

(3) To protect the values of the designated geologic feature as expressed by the local government and 21 

citizenry.  These values shall be related to the educational and aesthetic qualities of the feature. 22 

(d)  Designation.  The Coastal Resources Commission hereby designates Jockey's Ridge as a unique coastal geologic 23 

formation area of environmental concern.  The boundaries of the area of environmental concern shall be as depicted 24 

on a map approved by the Coastal Resources Commission on December 4, 1987, and on file with the Division of 25 

Coastal Management, available at 400 Commerce Ave., Morehead City, NC 28557. This area includes the entire rights 26 

of way of US 158 Bypass, SR 1221 (Sound Side Road), Virginia Dare Trail, and Conch Street where these roads 27 

bound this area.  Jockey's Ridge is the tallest active sand dune along the Atlantic Coast of the United States.  Located 28 

within the Town of Nags Head in Dare County, between US 158 and Roanoke Sound, the Ridge represents the 29 

southern extremity of a back barrier dune system which extends north along Currituck Spit into Virginia.  Jockey's 30 

Ridge is an example of a medano, a large isolated hill of sand, asymmetrical in shape and lacking vegetation.  Jockey's 31 

Ridge is the largest medano in North Carolina and has been designated a National Natural Landmark by the U.S. 32 

Department of the Interior. 33 

(e)  Use Standards.  Jockey's Ridge.  Development within the Jockey's Ridge AEC shall be consistent with the 34 

following minimum use standards: 35 

(1) Development which requires the removal of greater than ten cubic yards of sand per year from the 36 

area within the AEC boundary shall require a permit; 37 
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(2) All sand which is removed from the area within the AEC boundary in accordance with 15A NCAC 1 

07H .0507(e)(1) shall be deposited at locations within the Jockey's Ridge State Park designated by 2 

the Division of Coastal Management in consultation with the Division of Parks and Recreation; 3 

(3) Development activities shall not significantly alter or retard the free movement of sand except when 4 

necessary for the purpose of maintaining or constructing a road, residential/commercial structure, 5 

accessway, lawn/garden, or parking area. 6 

 7 
History Note: Authority G.S. 113A-107(a),(b); 113A-113(b)(4)g.; 113A-124; 8 

Temporary Adoption Eff. April 5, 2024. 9 
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1.  Rule-Making Agency: Coastal Resources Commission 

2.  Rule citation & name:  15A NCAC 07H .0508 Use Standards 
 
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
creates confusion related to permitting procedures for the State’s coastal management program and the regulated public. In addition, 
there is a serious threat to public safety and welfare because the removal of these rules results in the loss of protection of coastal 
lands and waters, which the General Assembly has deemed "among North Carolina's most valuable resources."  N.C. Gen. Stat. 
113A-102(a). In particular, this rule provides minimum use standards (i.e. requirements) for development within a designated 
fragile coastal natural or cultural resource area. To date, the CRC has designated the Jockey’s Ridge Area of Environmental 
Concern. Without this rule, there are no requirements for development permits for that designated Area of Environmental Concern. 
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7. Why is adherence to notice and hearing requirements contrary to the public interest and the immediate adoption of the 
rule is required? 

 
The CRC incorporates the explanation provided in response in Block 6 of this form. In addition, the CRC contends that 
immediate adoption of the rule is required instead of a more extended notice and hearing requirements. The CRC has 
received numerous public comments with the significant majority in favor of adopting the temporary rules. Specifically, 
the CRC has held three public hearings and extended the public comment period to February 22, 2024 in order to widely 
solicit comments not only from the general public and the regulated public but also through a direct appeal to the Coastal 
Resources Advisory Council. The CRC has received comments from a diverse group of commenters including, among 
others coastal towns and counties, civic groups, environmental groups, businesses, visitors’ bureaus, a group of high 
school students, and numerous private citizens. During the public comment period, the CRC received 239 comments 
including 1 petition with 651 signatures in support of adopting the rules. Of the comments received 3 were neutral, 6 
included concerns, 2 provided recommendations for changes which the CRC has decided to consider during permanent 
rulemaking, and the remaining 228 comments were in support of adopting the rules. Immediate adoption of this rule is 
required to provide use standards for the Jockeys’ Ridge AEC and protect this important natural resource.   

 
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
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15A NCAC 07H .0508 is adopted under temporary procedures as follows: 1 

 2 

15A NCAC 07H .0508 USE STANDARDS 3 

Permits for development in designated fragile coastal natural or cultural resource areas shall be approved upon finding 4 

that: 5 

(1) The proposed design and location shall not cause significant adverse impacts to the stated values of 6 

a particular resource.  One or more of the following values shall be considered in making a permit 7 

decision depending upon the stated significance of the resource: 8 

(a) Development shall preserve the values of the individual resource as it functions as a critical 9 

component of a natural system. 10 

(b) Development shall not cause significant adverse impacts to the values of the resource as a 11 

unique scientific, associative, or educational resource. 12 

(c) Development shall be consistent with the aesthetic values of a resource as identified by the 13 

local government and citizenry. 14 

(2) No alternative sites are available outside the designated AEC. 15 

(3) Mitigation measures shall be incorporated into the project plan. These measures shall include 16 

consultation with the CRC. 17 

(4) The project shall be of equal or greater public benefit than those benefits lost or damaged through 18 

development. 19 

 20 
History Note: Authority G.S. 113A-107(a),(b); 113A-113(b)(4e) to (b)(4h); 113A-124; 21 

Temporary Adoption Eff. April 5, 2024. 22 



NOMINATION OF JOCKEY' S RIDGE AS A UNIQUE COASTAL GEOLOGIC FORMATION AREA
OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERN

May 7, 1987

I. PREPARED BY

A. Name Hazard Richard B. 

B. Address N. C. Division of Parks and Recreation

P. O. Box 27687

Raleigh, N. C. 27611

919 733- 7795

C. Others knowledgeable about area being nominated

William W. Davis, Ph. D. Director, Division of Parks and

Recreation Address above

Chuck Roe, Natural Heritage Program, Division of Park

and Recreation Address Above

Steve Benton Division of Coastal Management Address

above

John Taggart Division of Coastal Management Address

above

II. LOCATION OF AREA BEING NOMINATED

A. County Dare

B. Nearest city Nags Head

C. Approximate size All of the area between Jockey' s Ridge State
Park and Soundside Road, including Jockey' s
Ridge State Park and the lands proposed for
acquisition -- approximately 413. 6 acres. 

III. NATURAL SITE DESCRIPTION - 

A. Current ownership. 

Jockey' s Ridge State Park - owned by the State of 387. 9813 acres

North Carolina, and allocated to the Division

of Parks and Recreation for management. 

Private lands immediately adjacent to Park proposed 16. 4040 acres

for acquisition this year. 

Remaining private lands ( detailed ownership 9. 1827 acres

listing for these lands is not currently available. 
TOTAL 413. 5680 acres
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B. Current use. 

Jockey' s Ridge State Park 387. 9813 acres

picnicking, photography, hang gliding, 
dune hiking, sight seeing, scientific

research, environmental education, 

interpretation, and scenic appreciation. 

Private lands proposed for acquisition: 
miniature golf course 3. 11 acres
commercial sand mining 0. 92

residential 4. 48

vacant 7. 89

16. 4040 acres

Remaining private lands: 
residential 5. 05 acres

vacant 4. 13

9. 1827 acres

TOTAL 413. 5680 acres

C. Ecological, Archaeological, Geological or Historical

Significance. 

Jockey' s Ridge, as the tallest active dune along the Atlantic Coast, and

represents the southern extremity of a back barrier dune system which
extends north along Currituck Spit to the vicinity of False Cape State
Park in Virginia. Jockey' s Ridge is an excellent example of a medano ( a

large isolated hill of sand, asymmetrical in profile and lacking
vegetation). Jockey' s Ridge is unique in that it is the largest medano
in North Carolina, and one in which the majority of the surface area is
protected by State ownership. This feature may also be classified as a
transverse dune ( a dune forming a wavelike ridge transverse to the

prevailing wind direction). The geological significance of Jockey' s
Ridge was acknowledged in 1974 when the U. S. Department of the Interior

included Jockey' s Ridge in the National Registry of Natural Landmarks. 

The history of Jockey' s Ridge spans four centuries. Long before the
first European settlers, the Algonquin Indians occupied semi -permanent
settlements in this portion of the Outer Banks. The Ridge has been a

landmark for mariners since - the first sightings by Spanish and. French
explorers. By the mid- 1800' s, the Nags Head area had become an important
resort area, and remained that way until this day. The State of North

Carolina acknowledged the geologic and recreational value of Jockey' s
Ridge by creating Jockey' s Ridge State Park in 1975. Since that time, 
more than 388 acres have been acquired by the Division of Parks and

Recreation. In 1986, the Park received more than 325, 867 visitors. 

D. Vegetation. 

Plant communities are poorly developed at Jockey' s Ridge, the result of

past human disturbance as well as the shifting sands providing an

inhospitable substrate for most plant growth. Major cover types are sea
oats, shrub thicket, loblolly pine - mixed hardwoods, and tidal marshes. 
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E. Animals. 

No - site specific information is available concerning the fauna of the
Jockey' s Ridge area. 

F. Physical features. 

As described above, the landform that is of the greatest significance is
Jockey' s Ridge, which rises 110- 140 feet above sea level. The uniqueness

of Jockey' s Ridge, its geologic significance, its educational and

scientific value, and its scenic and recreational attributes combine to

make Jockey' s Ridge one , of the most important public resources of the
coastal region. 

IV. HANAGEHENT RECOMMENDATION

A. Lowest priority of use

Adds to . the Town of Nags Head zoning of this area - Special Planned

Development District 20: commercial and industrial uses of the land and

any other uses not compatible with residential/ recreational uses should
be discouraged. Excavation and removal of sand for commercial purposes
should be prohibited. Land uses which retard or alter historical wind
patterns, as well as land uses which retard free movement of sand should
be discouraged. Finally, land uses which would adversely affect - the
aesthetics of Jockey' s Ridge should be discouraged. Sands which are

collected for the purpose of maintaining an existing residence or use
should be deposited in Jockey' s Ridge State Park. 

B. Highest priority of use

The highest priority should be given to open space and recreation land
uses. Low density single family residential development and planned unit
residential development would be permitted where appropriate. 

V. DATA SUPPLEMENT

A. Research studies, inventory reports, surveys

Division of Parks and Recreation, 1976. Master Plan for Jockey' s Ridge
State Park. Raleigh, N. C.: N. C. Department of Natural Resources
and Community Development, Division of Parks and Recreation. 

Division of Parks and Recreation, 1982. Jockey' s Ridge Natural Area. 
Compiled by John B. Taggart. Raleigh, N. C.: N. C. Department of

Natural Resources and Community Development, Division of Parks and
Recreation, Natural Heritage Program. 
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Eakes, Alan R., 1973. A Detailed Report on Field Investigation October

1973, Jockey' s Ridge - Nags Head Woods. Raleigh, N. C.: N. C. 

Department of Natural Resources and Community Development, Division

of Parks and Recreation. 

Hazard, Richard B., 1979. Final Environmental Impact Statement for the

Jockey' s Ridge State Park Master Plan. Raleigh, N. C.: N. C. 

Department of Natural Resources and Community Development, Division

of Parks and Recreation. 

B. Contacts

Donald W. Bryan, Mayor, Town of Nags Head. P. O. Box 99, Nags Head, N. C. 

27959. 

Webb Fuller, Town Manager, Town of Nags Head. 

Stephen E. Davenport, Planning and Development Director, Town of Nags

Head. 

Steve -Benton and Melisa McCullough, NRCD Division of Coastal
Management. P. O. Box 27687, Raleigh, N. C. 27611

Governor James G. Martin - and the Council of State ( April 7, 1987 Council

of State meeting). 

Harold McGrady, N. C. Department of Labor, Mines and Quarries. 

Steve Conrad, Director, NRCD Division of Land Resources. P. O. Box

27687, Raleigh, N. C. 27611

C. Additional information
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NRSCD - COASTAL MANAGEMENT T15: 07H . 0500

0507 UNIQUE COASTAL GEOLOGIC FORMATIONS

la) Description. Unique coastal geologic formations are . 77. 4
defined as sites that contain geologic formations that are. uni que 77. 5
or otherwise significant components of coastal systems, or that 77.. 6
are especially notable examples of geologic formations or

processes in the coastal area. Such areas will -be evaluated by 77. 7

the commission after identification by the State Geologist. 
1b) Significance. Unique coastal geologic areas are important 77. Q

educational, scientific, or scenic resources ghat would be 77. 9

jeopardized by uncontrolled or incompatible development. 
1c) Management objectives.. The CRC' s objective is to preserve 77. 10

unique resources of more than local significance that function as 77. 11

key physical components of natural systems, as important

scientific and educational sites, or as valuable scenic 77- 12

resources. ' Specific objectives for each of .these functions shall 77. 13

be related to the following policy statements either singly or in
combination: 77. 14

11) To ensure that the designated geologic feature will be 77. 16

able to freely interact with other components of the 77. 17

identified systems.- These interactions are often the

natural forces acting to mairtain the unique qualities 77. 18

of the site. The primary concern is the relationship
between the geologic feature and the accompanying 77. 19

biological component associated with the feature. 

Other interactions which may be of equal concern are 77. 20
those. relating the geologic feature to other physical 77. 21
components, specifically the relationship of the

geologic feature to the hydrologic elements; ground 77. 22

water and surface runoff. - 

12) To ensure that the designated geologic feature or 77. 23

process will be preserved for and be accessible to the 77. 24
scientific and educational communities for. related

study purposes. 

S3) To protect, the values of the designated geologic 77. 25

feature as expressed by the local government and 77. 26

citizenry. These values should be related to the

educational and aesthetic qualities of the feature. 77. 27

History Note: Statutory Authority G. S. 113A- 107 ( a) , ( b) ; 77. 30

113 A- 113 ( b) ( 4) g. . 77. 31
Eff. September 9, 1977. 77. 32

0508 USE _ STANDARDS 77. 34

Permits for development in designated fragile coastal natural 77. 36

or cultural resource areas will be approved upon finding that: 77. 37

11) The proposed design and location will cause no major or 77. 38

irreversible damage to the stated values of a particular 77. 39
resource. one or more of the following values must be

NORTH CAROLINA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 04/ 09/ 87 7- 126
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State of North Carolina

Department of Natural Resources and Community Development
Division of Coastal Management

512 North Salisbury Street * Raleigh, North Carolina 27611

James G. Martin, Governor David W. Owens
S. Thomas Rhodes, Secretary Director

June 4, 1987

MEMORANDUM

TO: Coastal Resources Commission

FROM: Rich Shaw

SUBJECT: Jockey' s Ridge AEC Nomination: Preliminary Evaluation

The N. C. Division of Parks and Recreation has nominated Jockey' s Ridge in
Dare County to be considered for designation as a Unique Coastal Geologic
Formation Area of Environmental Concern ( 15 NCAC 7H . 0507). Attached

please find a copy of the nomination ( received 5/ 18/ 87) along with maps
of the nominated area. 

Jockey' s Ridge is located within the town of Nags Head on the west side of
NC 158 The nominated area -includes all of the lands between Jockey' s Ridge
State. Park and Soundside Road ( S. R. 1221), including 388 acres of existing
state parkland, 16 acres of adjacent private lands ( commercial/ residential/ 
vacant) proposed for Park acquisition, and 9 acres of remaining private
lands ( residential/ vacant)-- approximately 413. 6 acres in' total. 

Jockey' s Ridge is a large irregular dune carplex with a ridge approximately . 
one mile long and 800 to 1, 200 feet wide and a maximum elevation of 110 to
140 feet above sea level. Jockey' s Ridge is the tallest active dune system
along the Atlantic Coast of the U. S., and is an excellent example of a
medano-- a large isolated - hill of sand with a characteristic slip face of
unconsolidated sand lacking vegetation. Jockey' s Ridge is unique in that it
is the largest medano in North Carolina, and one in which the majority of
the surface area is protected by State ownership. This site' s geological
significance was acknowledged in 1974 when the U. S. Department of the Interior

included Jockey' s Ridge in the National Registry of Natural Landmarks. 

While the overall physical appearance and location of Jockey' s Ridge does
not change dramatically from year to year, individual peaks of sand shift
position in response to the prevailing winds. Area winds are southwesterly
from March through August and northeasterly from September through February, 

P.O. Box 27687, Raleigh, North Carolina 27611- 7687 Telephone 919-733-2293

An Equal Opportunity Affirmative Action Employer



causing a back - and - forth movement of the ridge within the same fluctuating
boundary and a slow net southwesterly movement. 

During summer months the southwesterly winds blow tons of sand from Jockey' s
Ridge onto adjacent privately owned lots. Sand blown on two of these lots

is scooped up and trucked away, thus removing the sand from the dune system. 
The nominators are concerned that the commercial " mining" of sand from the

ridge is " severely threatening the integrity of Jockey' s Ridge." The Town

of Nags Head prohibits sandmining except for the removal of windblown sand
above normal grade on private property. 

Therefore, the nominator requests the Commission' s review of the attached
nomination of Jockey' s Ridge as a Unique Coastal Geologic Formation. Their
stated purpose in this nomination is to protect the dune system from " incom- 

patible land use" pursuant to the following policy statements: 

1. to ensure that Jockey' s Ridge will be able to freely interact
with other components of the immediate area' s ecosystem; 

2. to ensure that Jockey' s Ridge will be preserved for and be
accessible to the State' s citizenry and to the scientific and
educational communities; and

3. to protect the values of Jockey' s Ridge as expressed by Dare
County, the Town of Nags Head, and the local citizenry. 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff feels that Jockey' s Ridge clearly fulfills the qualifications for
Unique' Coastal Geologic Formations as outlined in 7H . 0507 ( attached) As

such, staff recommends that the Commission request a detailed review of the

AEC nomination that would include site specific use standards and an analysis

of appropriate boundaries for the proposed AEC. This detailed review would
be brought to the Commission in July for further action. 
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Department of Natural Resources and Community Development
Division of Coastal Management

512 North Salisbury Street • Raleigh, North Carolina 27611

James G. Martin, Governor David W. Owens
S. Thomas Rhodes, Secretary December 3, 1987 Director

MFMrnR ANni1M

TO: Coastal Resources Commission

FROM: Rich Shaw

Subject: Jockey' s Ridge AEC Designation

In June of 1987 the Commission received a nomination of Jockey' s Ridge
in Dare County to be considered for possible designation as an area of
environmental concern. The NRCD Division of Parks and Recreation

DPR) nominated Jockey' s Ridge as a unique coastal geological
formation ( 15 NCAC 7H . 0507), citing this area as the tallest dune
system along the Atlantic and Gulf Coasts ( See P& SI- 261). 

DPR is concerned that the commercial " mining" of sand from the system

is severely threatening the integrity of Jockey' s Ridge. A detailed

review ( P& SI- 266) of the nomination included proposed AEC boundaries
and development standards that are designed to minimize interference

with natural processes that move and shape Jockey' s Ridge. The

proposed boundaries include all lands which staff believes could, over

the long- term, affect the shape and movement of the Jockey' s Ridge
dune system. 

The proposed Jockey' s Ridge AEC ( 7H . 0507) would prohibit the removal
of large quantities of sand from the Jockey' s Ridge dune system. The

removal of greater than 10 cubic yards ( approximately one dump truck
load) of sand' per year from the areas within the AEC boundary would
require a CAMA permit. This sand would have to be deposited at

designated locations within Jockey' s Ridge State Park. 

AEC designation would have little or no effect on those who do not

intend to export sand from the ridge. The proposed adoption of 7K
0211 would exempt all development activities within the Jockey' s

Ridge AEC from CAMA permit requirements provided they do not involve
the removal of more than 10 cubic yards of sand per year from the area
inside the AEC boundary. 

Staff feels that these rules are consistent with the management

objectives stated in 7H . 0507( c) and are needed to protect Jockey' s
Ridge as a unique coastal geologic formation. The information

presented today is for your decision whether or not to designate
Jockey' s Ridge an AEC. 

P.O Box 27687, Raleigh, North Carolina 27611- 7687 Telephone 91% 733- 2293

An Equal Opportunity Affirmative Action Employer
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Public Hearines

Two public hearings were held on this AEC proposal: one at the

September CRC meeting in Wrightsville Beach and the other on October
22, 1987 in Nags Head. All written comments and a transcript of the

October hearing are included as CRC- 396( b). 

While all but two comments support the Jockey' s Ridge AEC designation, 
questions have been raised by the Town of Nags Head and area residents
concerning the proposed AEC boundaries and use standards. Residents

of the North Ridge and Kitty Dunes Estates subdivisions and The Villas
Condominiums feel that their property should not be included in the
AEC. They point out that most of these lands are either vegetated or
paved at this time, and therefore, have no significant transfer of

sand with the unvegetated Jockey' s Ridge. The Town of Nags Head

concurs and has recommended an alternative boundary ( see map) which

would exclude those residents as well as other private oceanfront

properties northeast of Jockey' s Ridge ( across US 158 and Beach Road). 

The Town also expressed reservations about the potential effects of
the proposed use standards on private property owners. Some residents

feel that private citizens should be compensated for the sand that
they might need to remove from their property and transport to the
Park. Others question whether the rules would allow the use of sand
fences or the establishment/ maintainance of a grass lawn. 

Finally, the Town and others feel that the local government should not
be responsible for enforcing these rules-- that the Town does not have

the resources to catch potential violators who might remove more than
10 cubic yards of sand per year without a permit. 

Two property owners are opposed to AEC designation for Jockey' s Ridge. 
The owner of the property known as " undeveloped Midgett property" 
feels that AEC designation would restrict her family' s full enjoyment
of their private property. The other opposed party, Mr. Tillet of

Nags Head, has been removing sand for years from his two vacant lots
on Sound Side Road for use in manufacturing concrete. Mr.- Tillet

feels that he is removing sand that would otherwise blow onto Sound
Side Road and require removal at the public' s expense. He also states

that AEC designation would reduce the value of his property by
changing the " highest and best use" of his land. 

AEC Boundaries

The original AEC nomination included all of Jockey' s Ridge State Park
and the privately owned lands located adjacent to the Park along the
west side of Sound Side Road ( SR 1221) and the north side of US 158. 

After a detailed review of the DPR nomination, Staff recommended

expanding the nominated boundaries to include more of the private
lands to the west, north, and east of the Park ( See map). Although

the primary input of new sand from the northeast side of the dune has
been cut off for years by development and by vegetation which helps to
stabilize the sand, these areas might be altered in the future, 

allowing the underlying sands to interact once again with the more
active sand dunes. The inclusion of this additional area would

provide long- term protection for the Jockey' s Ridge dune system. 
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Area property owners feel that the developed lands to the west, north, 

and east of the state park no longer supply or receive significant
amounts of sand to or from Jockey' s Ridge. The Town of Nags Head has

proposed an alternative boundary which would exclude most of these
developed lands from the AEC. 

Staff Recommendation

The natural processes that once provided sand to this large dune
system are no longer operating. With no new sources of sand to

replenish the system, it is important to protect what is there. The

proposed use standards would minimize the removal of sand from the
Jockey' s Ridge dune system and minimize any unnecessary interference
with the natural processes that move and shape the ridge. 

Staff recommends that the Commission designate Jockey' s Ridge an Area
of Environmental Concern, and in doing so, provide more reliable long- 
term protection for this unique coastal geologic formation. AEC

designation should be accompanied by the adoption of use standards
that would minimize the large- scale removal of sand from the Jockey' s
Ridge dune system. Staff feels that the AEC boundary should include
all areas with sand that could contribute to the movement and

configuration of the ridge, including some of the developed and/ or
vegetated lands which today anchor the underlying sand. However, if

the Commission feels that it is not necessary to include some of these
more stable areas at this time, staff would recommend adopting the
boundary proposed by the Town of Nags Head. 

The following are a revised set of draft use standards for proposed
Jockey' s Ridge AEC: 

15 NCAC 7H . 0507 has been proposed to be amended as follows: 

0507 UNIQUE COASTAL GEOLOGIC FORMATIONS

d) Designation. The Coastal Resources Commission hereby
designates Jockey' s Ridge as a unique coastal geologic formation area
of environmental concern. The boundaries of the area of environmental

concern shall be as depicted on a map approved by the Coastal
Resources Commission on December 3, 1987, and on file with the

Division of Coastal Management. This area includes the entire rights

of way of US 158 Bypass, SR 1221 ( Sound Side Road), Villa Dunes Drive, 

and Hollowell Street where these roads bound this area. Jockey' s
Ridge is the tallest active sand dune along the Atlantic Coast of the
United States. Located within the Town of Nags Head in Dare County, 
between US 158 and Roanoke Sound, the Ridge represents the southern

extremity on a back barrier dune system which extends north along
Currituck Spit into Virginia. Jockey' s Ridge is an excellent example
of a medano, a large isolated hill of sand, asymetrical in shape and

lacking vegetation. Jockey' s Ridge is the largest medano in North
Carolina and has been designated a National Natural Landmark by the
U. S. Department of the Interior. 
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e) Use Standards. Jockey' s Ridge. Development within the

Jockey' s Ridge AEC shall be consistent with the following minimum use
standards: 

1) Development which requires the removal m vement of greater than
10 cubic yards of sand per year from the area within the AEC
boundary shall require a permit; 

2) All sand which is removed eolleeted from the area within the
AEC boundary in accordance with 7H . 0507( e)( 1) shall be

deposited at locations within the Jockey' s Ridge State Park
designated by the Division of Coastal Management in
consultation with the Division of Parks and Recreation. 

3) Development activities shall not significantly alter or retard
the free movement of sand except when necessary for the purpose
of: 

A) maintaining or constructing a road, residential/ commercial

structure, accessway, lawn/ garden, or parking area; 

B) maintaining or establishing a primary or frontal dune in
accordance with 15 NCAC 7H . 0308( b). 

History Note: Statuatory Authority G. S. 113A- 107( a), ( b); 

113A- 113( b)( 4) g; 
Eff. September 9, 1977. 

Amended Eff. February 1, 1988. 

15 NCAC 7K . 0211 has been proposed to be adopted as follows: 

0211 JOCKEY' S RIDGE AEC

All development in the Jockey' s Ridge area of environmental concern
designated pursuant to 15 NCAC 7H . 0507 that is not within any other
designated area of environmental concern shall be exempt from CAMA

major and minor permit requirements provided it does not involve
the removal movement of more than 10 cubic yards of sand per year from
the area within the AEC boundary. 

History Note: Statutory Authority G. S. 113A- 103( 5)( c); 

Eff. February 1, 1988. 
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ROY COOPER
Governor

ELIZABETH S. BISER
Secretary

WILLIAME. TOBY VINSON,JR
Interim Director

NORTH CAROLINA
Environmental Quality

April 24, 2024

North Carolina Coastal Resources Commission,

Pursuant to G.S. 113A-113(b)(4)(g), the Coastal Resources Commission is allowed to designate
an Area of Environmental Concern when the State Geologist has identified that area as
containing unique geological formations.

Jockey’s Ridge, located within the Town of Nags Head, is an excellent example of a medano, a
large, isolated hill of sand with a characteristic slip face of unconsolidated sand lacking
vegetation. In fact, this unique system is not only the largest medano in North Carolina but is the
largest anywhere along the Atlantic and Gulf Coasts, and one in which the majority of the
surface area has been protected by the State through its dedication as a State Park.

Due to prevailing winds, sand shifts in this area already cause the natural removal of sand from
the dune system, including outside the protective boundaries of Jockey’s Ridge State Park. As a
result, it is important to prevent incompatible development through the commercial removal of
sand from this fragile system as such removal would severely threaten the integrity of Jockey' s
Ridge. With no new sand sources to help replenish the system, it is imperative to protect what
exists instead of allowing major irreversible damage to occur. As the State Geologist, it is my
opinion that Jockey’s Ridge is a unique geological formation that should be designated as an
Area of Environmental Concern so as to provide protection to this system and its sand to the
maximum extent practicable.

I am happy to explain this issue further or provide additional information needed in your
discussions to designate Jockey’s Ridge as an AEC. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Dr. Kenneth B. Taylor, PG
State Geologist of North Carolina

North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality I Division of Energy. Mineral and Land Resources
512 North Salisbury Street | 1612 Mail Service Center I Raleigh,North Carolina 27699-1612
919.707.9200
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Burgos, Alexander N

From: Liebman, Brian R
Sent: Monday, April 8, 2024 3:24 PM
To: Cahoon, Renee M
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N; Everett, Jennifer; Lucasse, Mary L
Subject: RRC Objection Letter
Attachments: 04.2024 - CRC 07H, I, J, M Temporary Rules Objection Letter.pdf

Good afternoon, 
 
Attached, please find a letter related to the objections voted on at this morning’s special meeting of the RRC.  As 
always, please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. 
 
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

Subject: FW: CRC Temporary Rule Staff Opinions
Attachments: 04.2024 - CRC 15A NCAC 07M .0402 Temporary Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 15 

NCAC 07M .0403 Temp Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 15 NCAC 07M .0401 Temp 
Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 15 NCAC 07M .0701 Temp Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 
- CRC 15 NCAC 07M .1101 Temporary Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 15 NCAC 07M 
.0704 Temp Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 07H .0507 Temp Rule Staff Opinion.doc; 
04.2024 - CRC 07H .0508 Temp Rule Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 07H .0509 Temp 
Rule Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 07I .0702 Temp Rule Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - 
CRC 07J .0203 Temp Rule Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 07J .0204 Temp Rule Staff 
Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 07J .0207 Temp Rule Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC 07J 
.0208 Temp Rule Staff Opinion.doc; 04.2024 - CRC All Temp Rule Staff Opinion.pdf

 

From: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov>  
Sent: Friday, April 5, 2024 5:42 PM 
To: Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Lucasse, Mary L <mlucasse@ncdoj.gov>; Rules, Oah <oah.rules@oah.nc.gov>; Burgos, Alexander N 
<alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Lopazanski, Mike <mike.lopazanski@deq.nc.gov>; Willis, Angela 
<angela.willis@deq.nc.gov>; Goebel, Christine A <Christine.Goebel@deq.nc.gov>; Miller, Tancred 
<tancred.miller@deq.nc.gov> 
Subject: FW: CRC Temporary Rule Staff Opinions 
 
Thanks, Brian! 
Have a fantastic weekend! 
 
 
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
Sent: Friday, April 5, 2024 5:29 PM
To: Lucasse, Mary L; Everett, Jennifer
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N
Subject: CRC Temporary Rule Staff Opinions
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

Good afternoon Mary and Jennifer, 
 
Attached, please find courtesy copies of staƯ opinions recommending objection to all of the CRC temporary rules 
before the Commission at Monday’s special meeting on the grounds that they do not meet the criteria for 
temporary rulemaking under G.S. 150B-21.1(a).   
 
Additionally, staƯ is recommending objection to all rules individually on the G.S. 150B-21.9 factors, except for 15A 
NCAC 07J .0206 and 15 NCAC 07M .0703. 
 
Thanks, and have a great weekend, 
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

Subject: FW: [External] CRC temporary rules - Aapril 8, 2024 RRC Special Meeting
Attachments: 2024-04-04 Ltr to RRC re 16 rules (signed).pdf

 

From: Lucasse, Mary <MLucasse@ncdoj.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, April 4, 2024 1:42 PM 
To: Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov>; Peaslee, William W <bill.peaslee@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Rules, Oah <oah.rules@oah.nc.gov>; Everett, Jennifer 
<jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: [External] CRC temporary rules - Aapril 8, 2024 RRC Special Meeting 
 
CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless verified. Report suspicious emails with the Report Message 
button located on your Outlook menu bar on the Home tab. 

 
Brian,  
   AƩached is the leƩer submiƩed in support of the CRC’s 16 temporary rules.  I will be available remotely to speak at the 
April 8 2024 meeƟng.  Thanks, Mary 

 

 

 
Mary L. Lucasse (she/her) 
Special Deputy Attorney General 
NCDOJ - Environmental Division 
PO Box 629  
Raleigh, NC 27602 
Direct: 919.716.6962    
mlucasse@ncdoj.gov 
www.ncdoj.gov 
 
Please note messages to or from this address may be public records. 
 

 
 
 
 



  

 
JOSH STEIN 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

 
 

     
REPLY TO: 

MARY L. LUCASSE 
(919) 716-6962 

MLUCASSE@NCDOJ.GOV 

  April 4, 2024   

Via email submission: oah.rules@oah.nc.gov 
 

Rules Review Commission 
North Carolina Office of Administrative Hearings 
1711 New Hope Church Road 
Raleigh, NC 27609 

  
Re:  CRC request for approval of 16 Temporary Rules 

  15A NCAC 07H.0507, .0508, .0509 
  15A NCAC 07I.0702 
  15A NCAC 07J.0203, .0204, .0206, .0207, .0208 
  15A NCAC 07M.0401, .0402, .0403, .0701, .0703, .0704, .1101 
  
Dear Commissioners:  
 
I am writing in response to comments submitted on behalf of Cedar Point Developers, LLC 
and the NC Home Builders Association (hereinafter “comments”) and to provide additional 
information regarding the public comments received and the NC Coastal Resources 
Commission’s (“CRC”) unanimous adoption of the sixteen temporary rules at its recent 
March 13, 2024 special meeting.  
 

I. The Temporary Rules Include Changes to Address Objections Raised by 
The RRC and counsel to the RRC.  
 

Many of the issues raised in the comments relate to changes in the temporary rules made 
by the CRC to address objections raised by the RRC and RRC’s counsel. For example, to 
address the objection that certain rules were simply stating policies, the CRC has included 
clear direction in the 07M rules on how the policy statements will be used for permit and 
enforcement decisions. In other rules, the CRC clarified how DCM would determine what is 
“reasonable” and/or clearly outlined DCM’s current practice such as circulating permit 
applications to other agencies with expertise or concurrent jurisdiction and allowing those 
agencies to suggest permit conditions for DCM’s consideration.   

In response to the RRC’s objection that the phrase “significant adverse impact” and related 
phrases were ambiguous, the CRC added definitions in the temporary rules that match the 
definition for “significant adverse impact” included in two permanent rules recently 
approved by the RRC during its meeting on December 14, 2023–15A NCAC 07H .0208  and 
07H .0308. These recently approved permanent rules are not part of this set of sixteen 
temporary rules. Given the RRC’s approval of the definition in the permanent rules, the 
CRC included the same definition for “significant adverse impact” and similar phrases in 
the temporary rules to address the RRC’s objection that these phrases are ambiguous. 
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II. Counsel for the RRC suggested that the CRC use the temporary rule 
process. 
 

Both  comments about the temporary rules received by the RRC assert that the CRC’s 
Statements of Need for the temporary rules are insufficient. However, during the hearing 
on the request for temporary restraining order (“TRO”) in CRC v. RRC, File No. 23 CVS 
031533-910, counsel for both RRC and the Codifier suggested to the trial court that a TRO 
was unnecessary as the CRC had the option of proceeding with emergency and temporary 
rulemaking. RRC counsel reiterated this suggestion in a letter to CRC counsel the day after 
the TRO hearing. In response, the CRC began emergency and temporary rulemaking on 
sixteen of the thirty rules that were returned to the CRC by the RRC. The CRC has 
attempted to work within the process suggested by RRC’s counsel and has provided 
Statements of Need for each temporary rule that meet the requirements in the APA.  

III. A significant number of public comments were received in favor of 
adopting temporary rules.  
 

Although the APA provides an abbreviated comment period in the temporary rule process, 
the CRC received a robust response to its request for comments on the temporary rules. 239 
comments were submitted to the CRC. Of the comments received, the vast majority (228) 
were in support of the temporary rules, 3 were neither for nor against, 1 comment was from 
Cedar Point Developers raising concerns about the alleged impact of the temporary rules on 
its development project (which it has already received a CAMA Major Permit), 5 comments 
supported Cedar Point Developers’ comments, and 2 comments were received from Corolla 
Civic Association and Corolla Light Board of Directors Comments which did not address the 
RRC objections or temporary rules but commented on other elements of the CRC’s rules 
and general permitting procedures.  

The comments in support came from a variety of sources including the Town of North 
Topsail Beach, the Town of Kill Devil Hills, the Town of Duck, and the Topsail Island 
Shoreline Protection Commission. For example, the Town of Kill Devil Hills adopted a 
resolution in strong support of the rules stating, among other concerns, that without these 
rules there would be “confusion and inconsistency within permitting” and “North Carolina’s 
ability to avail itself of federal consistency review privileges and federal funding” would be 
jeopardized. In addition, the NC Coastal Resources Advisory Council unanimously 
requested the CRC adopt the temporary rules expressing concern that “without these rules, 
there will be chaos in development due to lack of rules resulting in unwanted development.”   

The CRC received multiple comments in favor of the temporary rules from environmental 
groups including the Coastal Carolina Riverwatch, the North Carolina Sierra Club, 
Carteret County Wildlife Club, the Southern Environmental Law Center, and one email 
from the North Carolina Conservation Network forwarding 651 signatures (counted as 1 
comment). The Commission also received numerous comments in favor of the rules from 
private citizens.  

The CRC received focused comments in support of readoption of the AEC for Jockey’s Ridge 
from Dare County Tourism Board, the Division of Parks and Recreation, Outer Banks 
Chamber of Commerce, Friends of Jockey’s Ridge, the Outer Banks Realty Group, the Town 
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of Nags Head, George Barnes from Jockey’s Ridge State Park, Outer Banks Visitor’s 
Bureau, Atlantic Crest Townhomes Owners Association, the Manteo High School Student 
Environmental Awareness Coalition, and private citizens. All the comments received by the 
CRC can be found at this link: Public Comments on Temporary Rules Received by CRC  

IV. During the March 13, 2024 Special Meeting, the CRC unanimously 
adopted the sixteen temporary rules. 

 
The comments submitted to the RRC mention concerns raised by individual commissioners 
during the process of adopting the temporary rules. During the process of adopting the 
temporary rules, the CRC listened to the comments received and decided that some of the 
issues raised in the comments could appropriately be addressed during the subsequent 
permanent rulemaking process. After considering all the comments received and working 
through the APA process for adopting temporary rules, the CRC commissioners voted 
unanimously in favor of adopting the temporary rules.  
 

* * * * 
 

The CRC is availing itself of the emergency and temporary rulemaking process at the 
suggestion of RRC Counsel. Because the CRC’s temporary rules comply with the 
requirements of the APA and for the reasons provided in this letter, the CRC respectfully 
requests the RRC approve the sixteen temporary rules submitted. I will be available 
remotely to answer any questions at the RRC’s April 8, 2024 meeting.  
 
      Sincerely, 
 

      
      Mary L. Lucasse 
      Special Deputy Attorney General/ CRC Counsel 
 
cc:  NC Coastal Resources Commission 
 Tancred Miller, DCM Director 
 John Branch via E-mail to: john.branch@neslonmullins.com 

Martin Warf via E-mail to: martin.warf@nelsonmullins.com 
Lewis Lamar via E-mail to: llamar@ncdoj.gov 
Mark Teague via E-mail to: gteague@ncdoj.gov 



1

Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: [External] CRC temporary rules - Aapril 8, 2024 RRC Special Meeting

 
 

From: Lucasse, Mary <MLucasse@ncdoj.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, April 4, 2024 11:25 AM 
To: Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov>; Peaslee, William W <bill.peaslee@oah.nc.gov>; Ascher, Seth M 
<seth.ascher@oah.nc.gov>; Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov> 
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

 
Thanks Brian.  ~ Mary 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, April 4, 2024 11:19 AM
To: Lucasse, Mary L; Peaslee, William W; Ascher, Seth M; Wiggs, Travis C
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N; Rules, Oah; Everett, Jennifer
Subject: RE: [External] CRC temporary rules - Aapril 8, 2024 RRC Special Meeting

Mary, 
 
Bill Peaslee and I have been reviewing your rules and will be presenting them to the Commission at the 
meeting.  You can send your memo to either or both of us, and we’ll see that it is posted on the website and 
distributed to the Commissioners for their review. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, April 1, 2024 12:45 PM 
To: Peaslee, William W <bill.peaslee@oah.nc.gov>; Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov>; Ascher, Seth M 
<seth.ascher@oah.nc.gov>; Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Rules, Oah <oah.rules@oah.nc.gov>; Everett, Jennifer 
<jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov> 
Subject: [External] CRC temporary rules - Aapril 8, 2024 RRC Special Meeting 
 
CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless verified. Report suspicious emails with the Report Message 
button located on your Outlook menu bar on the Home tab. 

 
Counsel,  
   For your informaƟon, I plan to provide a short memo for the RRC’s consideraƟon at its April 8, 2024 meeƟng regarding 
the 239 comments received (all but 11 overwhelmingly posiƟve and in support of adopƟng the temporary rules and AEC 
status for Jockey’s Ridge). Please let me know who of the RRC’s counsel will be reviewing the CRC’s 16 temporary rules 
that are scheduled to be considered at the upcoming special meeƟng. Thank you in advance for your response. ~ Mary 
    
 

  
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
To: Peaslee, William W; Liebman, Brian R; Ascher, Seth M; Wiggs, Travis C
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

From: Everett, Jennifer
Sent: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 1:45 PM
To: Peaslee, William W
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N; Liebman, Brian R; Ascher, Seth M; Wiggs, Travis C; Rules, Oah
Subject: RE: CRC temporary rules

Thanks. 
 
 
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
 

From: Peaslee, William W <bill.peaslee@oah.nc.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 1:23 PM 
To: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>; Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov>; Ascher, Seth 
M <seth.ascher@oah.nc.gov>; Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov>; Rules, Oah <oah.rules@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: RE: CRC temporary rules 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
The Chair has just called for a special meeting April 8, 2024 at 10:00 am to consider the CRC temporary rules.  
 
William W. Peaslee 
Rules Review Commission Counsel / Legislative Liaison 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
1711 New Hope Church Road 
Raleigh NC, 27609 
(984) 236-1939 
Bill.Peaslee@oah.nc.gov 
 
 

 
Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized 
state official. 
 

From: Everett, Jennifer <jennifer.everett@deq.nc.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 26, 2024 12:23 PM 
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To: Peaslee, William W <bill.peaslee@oah.nc.gov>; Liebman, Brian R <brian.liebman@oah.nc.gov>; Rules, Oah 
<oah.rules@oah.nc.gov>; Ascher, Seth M <seth.ascher@oah.nc.gov>; Wiggs, Travis C <travis.wiggs@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: CRC temporary rules 
 
Hello, 
 
Can someone let me know the status of the Coastal Resources Commission’s temporary rules that I filed last 
week and are on tomorrow’s agenda.I also see from the agenda that public comments have just recently been 
posted.  I never received a copy. 
Since I have not received any communication from OAH, I’m sending this to all attorneys. 
 
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
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